
Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee

Date Thursday 28 June 2018
Time 9.30 am
Venue Mountsett Crematorium Meeting Room, Dipton

Business

Part A

[Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend.
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman’s 

agreement]

1. Membership of the Joint Committee  
2. Apologies for absence, if any  
3. Declarations of Interest, if any.  
4. Appointment of Chairman  
5. Appointment of Vice-Chairman  
6. Minutes of the Meeting held on 27 April 2018  (Pages 3 - 8)
7. Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee, Changes to Constitution / 

Terms of Reference  (Pages 9 - 24)
Report of the Clerk to the Joint Committee.

8. 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement  (Pages 25 - 38)
Report of the Corporate Director: Regeneration and Local Services and 
Corporate Director: Resources & Treasurer to the Joint Committee

9. Revenue Outturn & Joint Committees Annual Return for the Financial 
Year Ended 31 March 2018  (Pages 39 - 54)
Report of the Corporate Director: Regeneration and Local Services and 
Corporate Director: Resources & Treasurer to the Joint Committee

10. Mountsett Crematorium Performance and Operational Report  
(Pages 55 - 60)
Report of the Bereavement Services Manager 

11. Forward Plan 2018/19  (Pages 61 - 64)
Corporate Director Resources & Treasurer to the Joint Committee



12. Such other business as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.  

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
20 June 2018

To: The Members of the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee

Durham County Council:-

Councillors: O Temple (Chairman), A Bainbridge, A Batey, J Carr, J Charlton, 
C Hampson, O Milburn, J Shuttleworth and B Stephens

Gateshead Council:

Councillors K Dodds (Vice-Chairman), D Bradford, M Charlton, L Green, 
S Green, J Lee and M Ord

Contact: Lucy Gladders Tel: 03000 269712



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee held in Mountsett 
Crematorium Meeting Room - Mountsett Crematorium, Dipton on Friday 27 April 
2018 at 3.30 pm

Present:

Councillor O Temple (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:

Durham County Council
Councillors A Bainbridge, J Carr, C Hampson and J Shuttleworth

Gateshead Council:
Councillors D Bradford, M Charlton, L Green, S Green and J Lee

1 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A Batey, K Dodd and M Ord.

The Chairman welcomed Councillor S Green, representing Gateshead Council, to the Joint 
Committee.

2 Minutes of the Meeting held on 30 January 2018 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2018 were confirmed as a correct record 
and were signed and initialled by the Chairman.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no Declarations of Interest.

4 Quarterly Performance and Operational Report - Position to 31 March 2018 

The Bereavement Services Manager, Graham Harrison asked Members to note the 
performance figures from January 2018 to March 2018 and the comparison to the same 
period for 2017, highlighting that there was a net increase of 24 cremations.  It was added 
that the annual total for 2017/18 was 1,396 compared with 1,439 in 2016/17, a decrease of 
43 year on year.
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



Councillors were asked to note the figure for the total number of cremations compared to a 
prudent budget assumption of 1,300 cremations, representing an over-achievement in 
cremation fee income of £60,022.  Members noted comparative figures for the previous 
eight financial years, noting an eight year average of 1,311 cremations.    

The Bereavement Services Manager asked Members to note the number of memorials 
sold in comparison to the same period the previous year, a decrease of 9 memorials, 
£2,913 year on year.

The Joint Committee noted that the Business Administration Apprentice had handed in 
their resignation and noted the position had been re-advertised with a closing date of the 
18 April 2018 and the advertisement had also been placed on the national Apprenticeship 
website.  It was added there had been 15 applicants and a shortlist of 6 to go to interviews 
next month.

Members noted that The Phoenix Partnership had carried out the installation, maintenance 
and repair of the old L&P Cremators for over 30 years and it was recommended a letter of 
thanks be send in recognition of the valuable service they provided.

Councillors were asked to recall the 2018/19 Fees and Charges being approved at the last 
meeting of the Joint Committee, with an item being raised in terms of the £9.00 charge for 
Non-Viable Foetus (NVF), whereas children up to 16 years of age were free.  It was added 
that this had historically been as cremations were organised via hospitals, though it was 
noted now this was via funeral directors.  Members noted the low income generated from 
the NVF cremations and that it was proposed that the cost was amended to a nil cost with 
immediate effect.

The Bereavement Services Manager explained the necessary arrangements would be 
made as regards representation at the Joint Conference of the Federation of Burial and 
Cremation Authorities and the Cremation Society of Great Britain, to be held at the Hilton 
Newcastle/Gateshead from Monday 11 to Wednesday 13 June 2018.

The Bereavement Services Manager informed Members that the Recycling of Metals 
Scheme had generated a sum of £5,000 for Cruse Bereavement Care with the Chairman 
and Bereavement Services Manager having presented the cheque to the charity.  
Members noted an extra round of nominations and also were reminded that at the last 
Committee it was noted that the current list of charity nominations was reaching its end and 
Members were asked to agree the list of charities and for any additional charities they 
wished to be included, noting that they needed to be bereavement related.

The Joint Committee noted the replacement of cremators and mercury abatement 
equipment, with details set out at paragraph 19 to 22 of the report. 

Councillor L Green asked if any charity nominations should be forwarded to the 
Bereavement Services Manager.  The Bereavement Service Manager noted this was 
correct, or if there was any charities Members wish to nominate now they could do so.  
Councillor L Green noted an outreach charity connected to the Armed Forces, noting 
helping with funeral costs.  The Chairman noted that any charity would need to link to 
bereavement and restrict accordingly.

Page 4



The Head of Finance and Transactional Services, Paul Darby noted that the Joint 
Committee would normally mirror the Central Durham Crematorium Joint Committee in 
terms of fees and charges and noted the Durham Committee had met and agreed the nil 
charge for NVF.

The Chairman noted that he had attended the last conference with the Bereavement 
Services Manager, and asked if any other Members wished to attend the upcoming 
conference.  Councillor J Shuttleworth noted he felt the Chairman should attend, with 
Councillor L Green adding that perhaps those attending could alternate between the 
constituent Local Authorities.  The Chairman noted he would attend the upcoming 
conference, though he asked that attendance at conferences be widened out to other 
Councillors. 

Resolved:

(i) That the current performance of the Crematorium be noted.
(ii) That the position in relation to the Business Administration Apprentice post be noted.
(iii) That a letter of thanks be sent to The Phoenix Partnership.
(iv) That the change in NVF cremation charge from £9 to nil be agreed. 
(v) That the attendance at the Burial and Cremation Conference be noted.
(vi) That the distribution of recycling income to the respective charity and subsequent 

charity nominations be noted. 
(vii) That the progress with regards to the cremator replacement be noted.

5 Financial Monitoring Report - Provisional Outturn as at 31 March 2018 

The Head of Finance and Transactional Services referred Members to the Financial 
Monitoring Report, with the provisional outturn as at 31 March 2018 (for copy see file of 
minutes).

The Joint Committee noted that the updated projected revenue outturn was showing a 
shortfall of £992,467 against a budgeted surplus of £460,636.  It was noted that the major 
variances were set out within the report, with the main issue being the £1,562,132 relating 
to the crematorium extension and cremator replacement being transacted through the 
revenue account at year end. Members noted the policy to maintain a general reserve of 
30% of the income budget and noted a transfer of £900 to the General Reserve, with a 
projected total reserve of £293,536 at the year-end.

The Head of Finance and Transactional Services noted the reduction in the reserves 
though explained that all the major works and those within the Service Asset Management 
Plan (SAMP) had been accounted for and the reserves would build up over the next 15-20 
years in line with when cremator replacement would be required.

Resolved:

That the April 2017 to March 2018 Revenue Spend Financial Monitoring Report and 
associated Provision Outturn position at 31 March 2018 be noted.

Page 5



6 Risk Register Update 2017/18 - 2 

The Head of Finance and Transactional Services asked Members to note the Risk Register 
Update 2017/18 update report, the Joint Committee considering updates on a 6 monthly 
basis.  Members recalled that the report set out Strategic Risks and Operational Risks with 
risks regularly reviewed by the DCC Risk Management Team and the Bereavement 
Services Manager.

It was noted that there had been one risk removed “Adverse impact on Crematorium 
business due to the ongoing refurbishment of the crematorium”, following the completion of 
the works in March 2018.  Members noted that the net likelihood of the “failure of 
Cremators” risk had been reduced from possible to remote, following the installation of new 
cremators.  It was explained that the Bereavement Services Manager and Team had been 
looking at issues in terms of GDPR, privacy notes and staff training to ensure compliance.  
Members noted that a fireproof door had been installed and were referred to the full 
register at Appendices 4 and 5.  

Resolved:

That the Members of the Central Durham Crematorium Joint Committee note the content of 
the report and the updated position.

7 Annual Internal Audit Report 2017/18 

The Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager, Paul Bradley referred Members 
to the Annual Internal Audit Report 2017/18 (for copy see file of minutes).

The Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager reminded the Joint Committee 
that the Annual Internal Audit Report fulfilled the requirements of Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards and CIPFA Local Government Application note for the Chief Internal 
Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager to deliver an annual audit opinion. 

Members were informed that the report looked at the Joint Committee’s systems of 
governance, risk management and internal control and that, from the work undertaken, he 
was able to provide a “Substantial” overall assurance opinion of the adequacy and 
effectiveness of internal control operating across the Joint Committee in 2017/18.  
Members were reminded that “Substantial” was the highest level of assurance rating.

The Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate Fraud Manager noted that the appendices to the 
report set out the work undertaken by Internal Audit and that there had been no significant 
control weaknesses that warranted inclusion in the 2017/18 Annual Governance 
Statement.

The Head of Finance and Transactional Services noted there were several observation in 
terms of strengthening arrangements relating to document retention, scanning documents, 
with the Bereavement Services Manager explaining he had spoken to procurement in 
terms of these issues and would come back to the Joint Committee in September with 
further information.

Page 6



The Chairman noted it was an excellent report and thanked the Officers for their hard work 
in once again obtaining a substantial assurance.  The Chairman also noted, on behalf of 
the Committee, thanks to the Bereavement Services Manager and all staff in terms of the 
hard work to ensure there was no impact on business while the new cremators were being 
installed.

Resolved:

That the content of the Annual Internal Audit Report and the overall “Substantial” opinion 
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Joint Committee’s control environment for 
2017/18 be noted.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee

28 June 2018

Mountsett Crematorium, Joint Committee, 
Changes to Constitution/Terms of 
Reference

Report of the Clerk to the Joint Committee

Purpose of the Report

1. To provide details of a review of the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee’s 
Constitution, which, in accordance with the Annual Governance Statement 
requirements is reviewed on an annual basis.

Background Information

2. The Constitution of the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee was presented to, 
and approved by members on 25 April 2013 and confirmed in an Agreement under 
Seal dated 2 March 2015.

3. Members also gave a commitment to review the Constitution on an annual basis, as 
part of the approval process for the Annual Governance Statement.

Review of the Constitution

5 The Constitution has been reviewed by the Clerk to the Mountsett Crematorium Joint 
Committee.

6 Members will recall that the Constitution fully reflects the constituent authority legal 
titles, expenditure and subsequent surplus distribution arrangements on a 65/35 
basis, along with the policies regarding retained surplus transfer to reserves.

7 Members will again note that the constituent authority membership appointments 
and asset ownership remain as per the original constitution, dated 7 September 
1976.  

8 The Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee will continue to operate within the 
procedure rules and financial regulations of the lead partner authority, Durham 
County Council who will continue to be responsible for the management of the facility 
and for supporting the Joint Committee.

9 The review has not highlighted any requirements for change to the current 
Constitution, which is attached at Appendix 2 for Members full consideration and 
therefore this report reaffirms continuation of the existing Constitution and 
governance arrangements set out within.

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



Recommendations:

10 It is recommended that:

 Members of the Committee consider the outcome of the review of the 
Constitution of Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee, and reapprove the 
Constitution as set out in Appendix 2, the review having been completed in 
accordance with Annual Governance Statement requirements.

Background Papers
  
Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee Constitution 2 March 2015
 
 

Contact: Bryan Smith – Clerk to the Joint Committee 
Tel: 03000 269 717

Page 10



Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance
The Constituent Authority income sharing (unchanged) and reserves protocols (in line with 
the strategy adopted in recent years) are disclosed within the revised constitution detailed 
within Appendix 2.

Staffing
There are no staffing implications associated with this report.

Risk 
There are no risk implications associated with this report

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Duty
There are no Equality and Diversity implications associated with this report.

Accommodation
The Constituent Authority asset ownership (unchanged) is highlighted within the revised 
constitution detailed within Appendix 2.

Crime and Disorder
There are no Crime and Disorder implications associated with this report.

Human Rights
There are no Human Rights implications associated with this report 

Consultation
Legal officers of Gateshead Council were originally provided with a copy of the constitution 
and given opportunity to comment / raise any detailed questions/ request amendments on 
its content in advance of circulation to members of the Mountsett Crematorium.

Procurement 
None

Disability Discrimination Act 
None

Legal Implications
The Constitution has been reviewed by the Clerk to the Joint Committee, an employee of  
Legal Services, Durham County Council, in line with relevant legislative requirements.

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee

28 June 2018

2017/18 Annual Governance Statement

Joint Report of Ian Thompson – Corporate Director: Regeneration and 
Local Services; John Hewitt – Corporate Director: Resources & 
Treasurer to the Joint Committee

Purpose of the Report
1 This report provides details of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for the year 

April 2017 to March 2018. The AGS will need to be formally approved by Members 
as part of the consideration of the Joint Committees Return for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2018 and is attached at Appendix 2.

Background

2 The Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee is responsible for ensuring that its 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that 
public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.  The Council also has a duty under the Local Government 
Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in a way which 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and          
effectiveness.

3 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee 
is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its 
affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements 
for the management of risk and performance.

4 The Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee has adopted and operates under (via 
Durham County Council, its lead Authority), a Local Code of Corporate Governance 
which is consistent with the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) / Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) 
Framework – ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’.  The Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) explains how the Joint Committee complies with this 
code and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
in relation to an annual review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control.

5 The AGS will need to be formally signed by the Chair and Treasurer (Durham 
County Council’s Corporate Director: Resources) to the Mountsett Crematorium Joint 
Committee and published along with the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee’s 
Annual Return no later than the 30 June 2018.

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



2

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS)

6 The Annual Governance Statement for Joint Committees is based around a number 
of statements or assertions in relation to good governance, financial management 
and internal control.

7 In approving the AGS, the Joint Committee is required to provide an answer of ‘yes’ 
or ‘no’ to each assertion.

8 The Joint Committee is expected to have relevant evidence in place to support each 
‘yes’ answer and would need to provide an explanation to the external auditor if it is 
not able to provide a ‘yes’ answer, including details of how the Joint Committee will 
address any identified weaknesses in its governance arrangements.

9 The seven assertions relevant to the Joint Committee are summarised below:

i. We approved the accounting statements prepared in accordance with the 
guidance notes within this Return.

ii. We maintained an adequate system of internal control, including measures 
designed to prevent and detect fraud and corruption and reviewed its 
effectiveness.

iii. We took all reasonable steps to assure ourselves that there are no matters of 
actual or potential non-compliance with generally accepted good practice that 
could have a significant financial effect on the ability of the body to conduct its 
business or on its finances and have reported our financial results to our host 
authority for inclusion in their accounts.

iv. We carried out an assessment of the risks facing the Joint Committee and took 
appropriate steps to manage those risks, including the introduction of internal 
controls and/or external insurance cover where required.

v. We maintained throughout the year an adequate and effective system of 
internal audit of the accounting records and control systems.

vi. We took appropriate action on all matters raised during the year in reports from 
internal and external reviews.

vii. We considered whether any litigation, liabilities or commitments, events or 
transactions, occurring either during or after the year-end, have a financial 
impact on the Joint Committee and where appropriate have included them in 
the accounting statements.

10 The statement is initially compiled by the Head of Finance and Transactional 
Services, in accordance with guidance contained within the Framework and reflects 
the current position within the Joint Committee.

11 The statement is evidence based and relies upon the review of the effectiveness of 
internal audit undertaken by the Audit Committee of the lead authority (Durham 
County Council) along with written assurances from the Bereavement Services 
Manager, internal audit’s views, having carried out a review during the year and 

Page 26



3

commented on the assurance given by each, external auditors and other review 
agencies and inspectorates and the assurances contained within their reports to the 
Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee. 

12 The Statement is submitted to the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee for 
approval with submission to External Audit – Mazars LLP by 30 June 2018.

Recommendations 
10 It is recommended that:-

 Members of the Joint Committee note the content of the 2017/18 Annual 
Governance Statement.

 The Chair and Treasurer approve and sign the 2017/18 Annual Governance 
Statement as part of the consideration of the Joint Committees Return for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2018.

Contact:  Paul Darby        Head of Finance & Transactional Services   03000 261930
                 Ed Thompson   Principal Accountant                                      03000 263481

Page 27



4

Appendix 1 - Implications

Finance
Financial planning and management is a key component of effective corporate governance.

Staffing
Ensuring staff are adequately trained and professionally competent to meet the core 
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance.

Risk 
Risk is intrinsic to the system of internal audit and governance.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Duty
Engaging local communities including hard to reach groups meets a core principle of the 
CIPFA/ SOLACE guidance. 

Accommodation
Asset Management is a key component of effective corporate governance.

Crime and Disorder
There are no Crime and Disorder implications associated with this report.

Human Rights
There are no Human Rights implications associated with this report.

Consultation
Engaging local communities meets a core principle of the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance. 

Procurement 
None

Disability Discrimination Act 
None

Legal Implications
The Accounts and Audit Regulations and Code of Practice set out the legal and regulatory 
framework in which the accounts of the Joint Committee are prepared. The proposals within 
this report seek to strengthen the Joint Committees compliance with these regulations.

Page 28



5

Appendix 2 -  Annual Governance Statement        

1      Scope of Responsibility

The Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee is responsible for ensuring that its 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that 
public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.  It also has a responsibility under the Local Government Act 
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy efficiency and 
effectiveness.  This Committee was established in 1964 by the Urban District Councils 
of Stanley and Consett (transferred to Derwentside District Council, 1976) and the 
Urban District Councils of Blaydon and Whickham (transferred to Gateshead 
Metropolitan Borough Council, 1976). 

Following Local Government Reorganisation in 2009, as successor to Derwentside 
District Council, Durham County Council acts as the lead authority.

The Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee is also responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise 
of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee has adopted a code of corporate 
governance, which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 
`Delivering Good Governance in Local Government` and operates under the policies 
and strategies including Contract Procedure Rules, Financial Procedure Rules, 
Financial Regulations, developed, agreed and adopted by the Durham County 
Council, its lead authority.

2 Requirements

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require smaller authorities to prepare an 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) every year.

The AGS is set out in Section 1 of the Joint Committees Annual Return and sets out 
seven statements or ‘assertions’. These are summarised below:

i. We approved the accounting statements prepared in accordance with the guidance 
notes within this Return.

ii. We maintained an adequate system of internal control, including measures designed 
to prevent and detect fraud and corruption and reviewed its effectiveness.

iii. We took all reasonable steps to assure ourselves that there are no matters of actual 
or potential non-compliance with generally accepted good practice that could have a 
significant financial effect on the ability of the body to conduct its business or on its 
finances and have reported our financial results to our host authority for inclusion in 
their accounts.

Page 29



6

iv. We carried out an assessment of the risks facing the Joint Committee and took 
appropriate steps to manage those risks, including the introduction of internal 
controls and/or external insurance cover where required.

v. We maintained throughout the year an adequate and effective system of internal 
audit of the accounting records and control systems.

vi. We took appropriate action on all matters raised during the year in reports from 
internal and external reviews.

vii. We considered whether any litigation, liabilities or commitments, events or 
transactions, occurring either during or after the year-end, have a financial impact on 
the Joint Committee and where appropriate have included them in the accounting 
statements.

In approving the Annual Governance Statement, the Joint Committee is required to 
provide an answer of ‘yes’ or ‘no’ to each of the above assertions.

The Joint Committee is expected to have relevant evidence in place to support each 
‘yes’ answer and would need to provide an explanation to the external auditor if it is 
not able to provide a ‘yes’ answer, including details of how the Joint Committee will 
address any identified weaknesses in its governance arrangements.

This document evidences how the Joint Committee complies with the requirements 
behind each assertion, as set out in ‘Governance and Accountability for Smaller 
Authorities in England – A Practitioners’ Guide to Proper Practices’.

3 Governance Arrangements during 2017/18

The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the governance 
arrangements are detailed in Durham County Council’s Local Code of Corporate 
Governance, which is documented in the Council’s Constitution.  This sets out the key 
documents and processes that determine the way the Council is directed and 
controlled to meet the seven statements or assertions.

The following sections demonstrate assurance that the Council has complied with 
each of these assertions in practice, and also highlights where we have further 
improved our corporate governance arrangements during 2017/18.

Assertion 1: We approved the accounting statements prepared in accordance 
with the guidance notes within this Return

The Joint Committee prepares a Revenue and Capital budget in advance of each 
financial year and robust budget setting processes are in place to support the Joint 
Committee’s decision making process. The budget makes prudent but realistic 
estimates of income and expenditure, capital investment requirements and the need to 
maintain prudent levels of reserves. 

Comprehensive monthly budgetary control systems including income and expenditure 
reconciliations and the preparation of regular financial reports which indicate actual 
expenditure against budget and forecast year end positions are also undertaken and 

Page 30

http://www.durham.gov.uk/constitution


7

reported quarterly to the Joint Committee, with corrective action being taken where 
required to address any budget issues.

The Corporate Director: Resources and Chief Finance Officer (CFO) is responsible 
for:

 ensuring the proper administration of the financial affairs of the Joint Committee

 establishing the Financial Management Standards and monitoring compliance 
with them 

 reviewing the Financial Management Standards regularly to ensure they remain 
fit for purpose 

 ensuring that proper professional practices, standards, and ethics are adhered 
to

 advising on the key strategic controls necessary to secure sound financial 
management

 ensuring that financial staffing resources are adequate to maintain adherence 
to these standards

 establishing a framework of documented business processes that support  
these financial management standards and ensuring that they are reviewed 
regularly

The Joint Committee prepares accounting statements each year via the Annual 
Return and these are supported by comprehensive working papers, supporting 
records and reconciliations.

Officers undertake a monthly reconciliation of the Joint Committee’s bank accounts to 
the accounting records held on its financial management system. Quarterly budgetary 
control reports setting out actual spending and income against budget and details of 
financial performance are reported to the Joint Committee. The year end bank 
reconciliation also forms part of the year end external audit’s limited assurance review.

The Joint Committee uses the lead authority, Durham County Council’s Investment 
Strategy for short term investments.

The Head of Finance & Transactional Services is responsible for putting in place 
sound arrangements for ensuring that the Joint Committee’s annual accounts are 
accurately prepared in accordance with statutory obligations and proper practices. The 
accounting statements are set out in the Annual Return and are prepared in 
accordance with ‘Governance and Accountability for Smaller Authorities in England – 
A Practitioners’ Guide to Proper Practices to be applied in the preparation of statutory 
annual accounts and governance statements’. The accounting statements are 
approved by the Joint Committee prior to 30 June every year, in accordance with the 
statutory timetable set out in the Accounts and Audit regulations 2015.

Page 31



8

Assertion 2: We maintained an adequate system of internal control, including 
measures designed to prevent and detect fraud and corruption and reviewed its 
effectiveness.

The Joint Committee, via its lead authority Durham County Council has in place 
comprehensive Financial Management Standards governing how it operates in 
accordance with the law and proper practices. These are supported by various policies 
and procedures covering specific requirements.

The Financial Management Standards cover how the Joint Committee orders goods 
and services, incurs liabilities, manages debtors, makes payments and handles 
receipts and how it puts in place efficient arrangements for safeguarding public money. 
A Risk Management strategy is in place supported by risk registers. Risk assessments 
are carried out and the registers updated on a six monthly basis. The Joint Committee 
employs an Internal Auditor to undertake audits of all key services and systems and 
report on possible weaknesses or required improvements in internal controls. The 
system of internal control is risk based and focussed on key risk areas such as cash 
and fixed assets.

The Joint Committee, via its lead authority pays its staff in accordance with an 
approved establishment list and grading structure and in line with the terms and 
conditions as set out in the National Joint Council for Local Government Services 
‘Green Book’ which sets out the national agreement on pay and conditions of service 
for local government staff. Comprehensive internal controls and checks are in place 
around the payroll system with significant internal audit time spent checking the 
accuracy and legitimacy of salary payments. The Joint Committee is responsible for 
ensuring compliance with all duties under employment legislation and has met its 
pension obligations and is not aware of any instances of non-compliance.

The Corporate Director: Resources and Treasurer to the Joint Committee is 
responsible for ensuring that the Joint Committee meets its statutory responsibilities in 
relation to VAT and putting in place robust arrangements for the processing of VAT 
and ensuring that the quarterly VAT claims are processed accurately and on time. All 
finance officers have had VAT training.

The Joint Committee revises its Service Asset Management Plan (SAMP) in 
September every year and ensures that its assets are secured, properly maintained 
and efficiently managed. This is demonstrated by:- 

 Continuing to identify the property needs of the service to enable it to deliver its 
vision

 Continuing to assess the condition, sufficiency, suitability, accessibility and 
energy performance of the crematorium and looking at their appropriateness to 
deliver the future service

 Identifying the portfolio gaps and appraising the options and priorities to close 
the gaps between future needs and current provision

Page 32



9

The lead authority, Durham County Council has in place a Treasury Management 
policy and an annual Treasury Management strategy which includes the framework for 
the management of loans and comprises:

 Current treasury position 

 Capital financing plans (including Prudential and Treasury Indicators) 

 Interest Rate Outlook 

 Policy on borrowing in advance of need 

 Investment Strategy 

 Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 

 Policy on use of external service providers 

The Joint Committee has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of 
the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control.  
The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of senior managers within the 
authority who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 
governance environment, the annual report of the Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate 
Fraud Manager, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other 
review agencies and inspectorates.

Assertion 3: We took all reasonable steps to assure ourselves that there are no 
matters of actual or potential non-compliance with generally accepted good 
practice that could have a significant financial effect on the ability of the body to 
conduct its business or on its finances and have reported our financial results 
to our host authority for inclusion in their accounts.

The Joint Committee is responsible for ensuring that all relevant laws and regulations 
have been complied with in the undertaking of all service activity and decision making.

Durham County Council and Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee Constitutions 
set out how they operate, how decisions are made and the procedures which are 
followed to ensure that these are effective, transparent and accountable to service 
users.

Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee ensures that its financial management 
arrangements conform to CIPFA standards by:-

     Appointing as its Treasurer, the Corporate Director: Resources and Chief Finance 
Officer (CFO) from the lead authority along with the Head of Finance & 
Transactional Services under the scheme of delegated responsibilities by the 
Treasurer.  The Corporate Director and Head of Finance are professionally 
qualified and possess the necessary skills, knowledge and experience to perform 
effectively in both a financial and non-financial role

Page 33



10

     Ensuring the finance function in support to the Treasurer is adequately qualified 
and resourced to fulfil its duties and a structure is in place that provides a line of 
professional accountability for the finance staff

     Ensuring that key CIPFA Codes such as the Prudential Framework for Local 
Authority Capital Finance and the Treasury Management Code are complied with 
where required

 Having a clearly articulated Medium Term Financial Plan/Reserves Strategy and   
Policy

     Producing Monthly Budgetary Control Reports which are considered on a 
quarterly basis by the Joint Committee

     Ensuring proper Internal Audit, Risk and Governance arrangements are in place

     Maintaining the Service Asset Management Plan.

Membership to the Federation of Burial and Cremation Authorities, which requires that 
each year a signed declaration, is made so that the Codes of Practice have been 
strictly adhered to. The Crematorium is also subject to bi-annual inspection by the 
regulator (DCC) who has to be satisfied that all Environmental Legislation is being 
implemented.

Performance monitoring undertaken through the use of comparative statistics with 
other crematoria and across years.

The Internal Audit Section is also subject to an annual review of its activities and 
performance. Evidence of the effectiveness of the Audit Service is presented to, and 
reviewed by the Audit Committee of the lead authority, Durham County Council. The 
assurance provided by the review is presented to, considered by and minuted by the 
Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee.

The Joint Committee has various measures in place to ensure that it does not take any 
decisions during the year that may exceed its powers or contravene any laws, 
regulations or proper practices. The lawfulness of all decisions referred to the Joint 
Committee is always considered by senior officers and is clearly referenced in reports, 
particularly in relation to decisions involving income or expenditure. The Joint 
Committee is not aware of any instances of non-compliance with law and regulations 
during 2017/18.

The Corporate Director of Resources & Treasurer to the Joint Committee ensures full 
compliance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 in 
relation to the Joint Committee’s financial management, accounting and audit 
arrangements.

The financial results of the Joint Committee are reported to the lead authority, Durham 
County Council at the end of every financial year for inclusion in their accounts.

Page 34



11

Assertion 4: We carried out an assessment of the risks facing the Joint 
Committee and took appropriate steps to manage those risks, including the 
introduction of internal controls and/or external insurance cover where required.

Durham County Council and Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee Constitutions 
set out how they operate, how decisions are made and the procedures which are 
followed to ensure that these are effective, transparent and accountable to service 
users.
A risk management approach is in operation that aids the achievement of strategic 
objectives, supports the decision making processes, protects the reputation and other 
assets of the Crematorium and is compliant with statutory and regulatory obligations. 

The Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee ensures that the Risk Management 
approach:-

 Is conducted in accordance with the Risk Management Policy and Strategy of 
Durham County Council. The Bereavement Services Manager is advised by the 
Corporate Risk Management Working Group where strategic and operational risks 
are considered

 Has strategically aligned the Internal Audit and Fraud service provision to enable 
access to trained investigators and allow greater coverage of counter fraud work 
when required

 Includes a Fraud Awareness training programme undertaken by Senior Officers
Involves regular reports by internal audit to those charged with governance, to 
standards defined in the CIPFA Code of Practice and in accordance with the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015. These include the Chief Internal Auditor and Corporate 
Fraud Manager’s independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
system of internal control, at the crematorium, together with recommendations for 
improvement.

Risk based assessments of key financial systems (as approved in the SLA) are carried 
out in the final quarter of the financial year to ensure maximum coverage of the 
Crematorium’s financial transactions and provide an informed opinion on the 
robustness, adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control, at the 
crematorium, together with recommendations for improvement.

The production of a Risk Register with regular reviews undertaken by the 
Bereavement Services Manager along with action plan reports are produced and 
approved where necessary. Full details are reported to the Joint Committee on a six 
monthly basis.

Service and operational risk registers are maintained through an evaluation of the 
gross risk based on an assessment of the impact and likelihood of the risk occurring. 
The net risk is evaluated on the same basis after taking into account mitigating control 
measures. Net risk evaluations are agreed by consensus and actions to mitigate 
and/or tackle issues arising from the individual risks are agreed for the upcoming year.

Risks are evaluated in a logical and straightforward process. Service risk assessments 
are based on the impact on finance, service delivery and stakeholders if the risk 

Page 35



12

materialises, and also the likelihood that the risk will occur over a given period. 
Operational risk assessments are based on Durham County Council’s health and 
safety risk assessment criteria, which include the likelihood of occurrence.

Assertion 5: We maintained throughout the year an adequate and effective 
system of internal audit of the accounting records and control systems.

The Joint Committee’s internal audit provider is Durham County Council Internal Audit 
Services, whose service is delivered in accordance with a Service Level Agreement 
(SLA) approved by the Joint Committee every three years. The Internal Audit service 
is delivered in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 ‘for undertaking an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance’.

The Internal Audit service applies a risk based audit approach and when determining 
the annual audit opinion considers the following:

 The adequacy of risk identification, assessment and mitigation

 The adequacy and application of controls to mitigate identified risk

 The adequacy and extent of compliance with Durham County Council’s corporate 
governance framework

 The extent of compliance with relevant legislation

 The extent to which the organisation’s assets and interests are accounted for and 
safeguarded from loss of all kinds including fraud, waste, extravagance, inefficient 
administration and poor value for money   

 The quality and integrity of financial and other management information utilised 
within the organisation 

The Internal Audit service conforms to the requirements of the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) as evidenced through an external assessment by 
‘self-assessment with independent external validation’. 

Durham County Council’s Financial Management Standards include a specific 
requirement that internal auditors are given access at all reasonable times to 
premises, personnel, documents and assets that the auditors consider necessary for 
the purposes of their work. This complies with the requirements of the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015.

Assertion 6: We took appropriate action on all matters raised during the year in 
reports from internal and external reviews.

The Joint Committee’s Internal Auditor reports the conclusions and recommendations 
from every audit examination to the Joint Committee on an annual basis and follows 
up on audit recommendations in subsequent audits to ensure that they have been 
implemented.

Page 36



13

The Joint Committee considers the annual review of the Annual Return from the 
external auditors and the Corporate Director of Resources and Treasurer to the Joint 
Committee would put in place an action plan to deal with any matters raised, as and 
when necessary.

Assertion 7: We considered whether any litigation, liabilities or commitments, 
events or transactions, occurring either during or after the year-end, have a 
financial impact on the Joint Committee and where appropriate have included 
them in the accounting statements.

During the annual closedown of the accounts, the Corporate Director of Resources 
and Treasurer to the Joint Committee assess whether there have been any events 
during the financial year or after year end, which may have potential consequences on 
the Joint Committee’s finances. If any such events are identified, the Treasurer will 
determine whether the financial consequences need to be reflected in the accounting 
statements and disclose them as necessary.

 4 Significant Governance Issues

Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee is fully committed to the principles of 
Corporate Governance, and has made further progress in recent months in developing 
its arrangements. 

The Internal Audit Section sought further assurance, via its annual plan of work and 
review of key systems. 

As a result, Internal Audit has provided Substantial overall assurance opinion on the 
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control operating across the Joint Committee in 
2017/18. This opinion provides assurance that there is a sound system of control in 
operation and there are no significant control weaknesses that warrant inclusion within 
the Annual Governance Statement.

6 Assurance Statement

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the 
effectiveness of the governance framework and the system of internal control by the 
Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee and are satisfied that plans to address 
weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system are in place.

SIGNED:

Chair to the Joint Committee       John Hewitt, CPFA Corporate Director of 
                                                         Resources and Treasurer to the Joint Committee
28 June 2018                                   28 June 2018

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee

28 June 2018

Revenue Outturn & Joint Committees 
Annual Return for the Financial Year Ended 
31 March 2018

Joint Report of Ian Thompson – Corporate Director: Regeneration and 
Local Services; John Hewitt – Corporate Director: Resources and 
Treasurer to the Joint Committee.

Purpose of the Report

1. This report seeks approval of the Joint Committees Annual Return (attached at 
Appendix 3) for Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee for the financial year ended 
31 March 2018. It also includes details of the final outturn position against the 
approved budgets for 2017/18. 

Background

2. The Joint Committees Annual Return will be subject to external audit by the Joint 
Committee’s appointed external auditors, Mazars LLP and the limited assurance audit 
will commence on 6 July 2018. Upon completion, the auditor’s report will be reported 
to the Joint Committee and will be made available online, along with the Return.

3. The attached Joint Committees Annual Return is not compulsory requirement for the 
Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee but is good practice. Also attached for 
Members attention at Appendix 2 is the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018.

Financial Outturn 2017/18

4. Members will recall that regular (quarterly) budgetary control reports have been 
considered throughout the year, which incorporated forecast year-end outturn 
positions. A provisional outturn report was presented to Members at the meeting of 27 
April 2018. 

5. The following table shows the final outturn position together with comparative data 
against the provisional outturn report considered on 27 April 2018.

Page 39

Agenda Item 9



Subjective Analysis Base Budget
2017/18

£

Outturn 
2017/18

£

Variance
Over/

(Under)
£

MEMO – 
Provisional 

Outturn 
(27.04.18)
2017/18

£
Employees 147,144 143,005 (4,139) 143,005
Premises 145,200 1,668,766 1,523,566 1,668,533
Transport 600 462 (138) 462
Supplies & Services 92,870 95,934 3,064 95,962
Agency & Contracted 7,100 5,967 (1,133) 5,967
Central Support Costs 27,450 27,450 0 27,450

Gross Expenditure 420,364 1,941,584 1,521,219 1,941,379

Income (881,000) (948,671) (67,671) (948,912)

Net Income (460,636) 992,913 1,453,549 992,467

Transfer to (from) Reserves
- Repairs Reserve
- Cremator Reserve
- General Reserve

15,000
280,746

0

15,000
(1,172,803)

0

0
(1,453,549)

0

15,000
(1,172,357)

0
Distributable Surplus (164,890) (164,890) 0 (164,890)

65% Durham County Council 107,178 107,178 0 107,178

35% Gateshead Council 57,712 57,712 0 57,712

Mountsett Crematorium
Earmarked Reserves

Balance @
1 April 2017

£

Transfers to 
Reserve

£

Transfers 
From 

Reserve
£

Balance @
31 March 2018

£

Repairs Reserve (24,370) (15,000) 0 (39,370)

Cremator Reserve (1,235,484) 0 1,173,703 (61,781)

General Reserve (263,400) (165,790) 164,890 (264,300)

Total (1,523,254) (180,790) 1,338,593 (365,451)

Explanation of Significant Variances between Original Budget and Forecast Outturn

6. The final outturn position is broadly in line with the provisional outturn position 
reported to the Joint Committee on 27 April 2018, with only very minor changes across 
a number of budget levels at the final outturn (£446 increase) to the overall net income 
for the year. 

Page 40



7. The following section outlines the reasons for significant variances by subjective 
analysis area (most of which was disclosed in the provisional outturn report), 
comparing the outturn position against the budget.

7.1 Employees
The outturn shows an underspend of (£4,139) in relation to employee costs. The 
reasons for this are identified below:

 The Business Admin Apprentice costs were lower than budgeted due to the 
age of the apprentice and the post holder left in February, resulting in an 
underspend of (£5,104).

 The staff training budget overspent by £965 due to coursework fees.

7.2 Premises
The outturn shows an overspend of £1,523,566 in relation to premises costs. The 
reasons for this are identified below:

 Utility charges underspent by (£805).

 The installation of air conditioning budget was not required as the costs have 
been incorporated within the cremator replacement works, resulting in an 
underspend of (£15,000).

 The replacement of carpets to the office area budget was also incorporated 
within the cremator replacement works, resulting in an underspend of 
(£10,000).

 The redecoration works underspent by (£8,097). Internal works were 
completed as planned but the external works have been delayed due to the 
poor weather.

 The cremator replacement and crematorium extension works have been 
charged to the revenue account and total £1,564,515. There was no budget 
for the works initially incorporated into the Premises Budget set in January 
2017 due to the uncertainty at the time of the level of reserves and the loan 
required from DCC to fund the works. The costs incurred in 2017/18 have 
been accommodated from a combination of utilising the Cremator 
Replacement Reserve and in-year underspends across other budget heads. 

 Cremator servicing and repairs underspent by (£2,710) due to the old 
cremators being replaced during the year.

 General repairs underspent by (£4,337) due mainly to the cremator 
replacement works being undertaken this year.

Page 41



7.3 Supplies and Services
The outturn shows an overspend of £3,064 in relation to supplies and services. The 
reasons for this are highlighted below:

 General office costs and sundry items underspent by (£3,385).

 Due to the increase in cremations and a back dated payment from 2015, 
medical referee expenditure is overspent by £3,630.

 The environmental surcharges payable for tradable mercury abated 
cremations from the CAMEO scheme is overspent by £2,819, again due to 
the increase in cremation numbers

7.4 Income
An increase in income of (£67,671) from the 2017/18 budget is included within the 
final outturn. The reasons for this are identified below:

 The outturn has taken into consideration an additional 96 cremations 
compared to budget, totalling excess income to budget of (£60,022). The 
outturn is based on a total of 1,396 cremations against a budget estimate of 
1,300 during 2017/18.  

 Interest is (£303) higher than expected due to a slight increase in interest 
rates and higher levels of balances than originally forecast.

 Book of Remembrance and Memorial Plaque income were (£7,346) higher 
than budget.

8. Earmarked Reserves
The 2017/18 base budget included provision for a £280,746 contribution to the 
Cremator Replacement Reserve in year.

The cremator replacement and extension works were nearing completion at the year 
end and therefore the budgeted contribution to the Cremator Replacement reserve 
and the brought forward balance on this reserve has been applied to fund these 
works. The closing balance of £61,781 will be utilised in 2018/19 upon completion of 
the project.

In line with the MCJC Reserve Policy to maintain a General Reserve of 30% of the 
income budget, a transfer to the General Reserve of (£900) was required at year 
end. 

The retained reserves of the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee at 31 March 
2018 are £101,151, along with a General Reserve of £264,300, giving a total 
reserves and balances position of £365,451 at the year end. This represents an in 
year decrease of (£1,157,803) (approximately 76% decrease on the balances held at 
31 March 2017) – reflecting the application of reserves to fund the cremator 
replacements in year.

Page 42



Recommendations and reasons

9. It is recommended that:-

 Members note the revenue outturn position as at 31 March 2018, including the 
year end position with regards to the reserves and balances of the Joint 
Committee.

 Members of the Joint Committee approve Section 1 – Annual Governance 
Statement 2017/18 of the Joint Committees Annual Return for the financial 
year ended 31 March 2018 (attached at Appendix 3).

 Members of the Joint Committee approve Section 2 – Accounting Statements 
2017/18 of the Joint Committees Annual Return for the financial year ended 
31 March 2018 (attached at Appendix 3).

 The Chair, Clerk and Treasurer sign the Joint Committees Annual Return for 
the financial year ended 31 March 2018 (attached at Appendix 3).

Contact(s):  Paul Darby       03000 261930
                       Ed Thompson  03000 263481

Page 43



Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance
Full details of the 2017/18 outturn financial performance of the Mountsett Crematorium are 
included within the body of the report. 

Staffing
There are no staffing implications associated with this report.

Risk 
The figures contained within this report have been extracted from the General Ledger, and 
have been scrutinised and supplemented with information supplied by the Bereavement 
Services Manager. The outturn has been produced taking into consideration all spend in 
year and year end accounting requirements. This, together with the information supplied by 
the Bereavement Services Manager should mitigate any risks with regard to challenge and 
review of the financial outturn position of the Joint Committee. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 
There are no Equality and Diversity implications associated with this report.

Accommodation
There are no Accommodation implications associated with this report.

Crime and Disorder
There are no Crime and Disorder implications associated with this report.

Human Rights
There are no Human Rights implications associated with this report 

Consultation
None. However, Officers of Gateshead Council were provided with a copy of the report and 
given opportunity to comments / raise, any detailed queries on the contents of this report in 
advance of circulation to members of the Joint Committee.

Procurement 
None

Disability Issues 
None

Legal Implications
The outturn proposals contained within this report have been prepared in accordance with 
standard accounting policies and procedures.

Page 44



Appendix 2

Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018

31st March 
2017  

31st March 
2018

£000  £000
   

0          Property, Plant & Equipment 0          
0          Intangible Assets 0          
0          Long Term Investments 0          
0          Long Term Debtors 0          
0          Long Term Assets 0          

   
1,010          Short term Investments 0          

0          Inventories 0          
17          Short Term Debtors 39          

586          Cash & Cash Equivalents 712          
1,613          Current Assets 751          

   
0          Short Term Borrowing 0          

(90)          Short Term Creditors (386)          
0          Provisions 0          

(90)          Current Liabilities (386)          
   

0          Long Term Creditors 0          
0          Provisions 0          
0          Long Term Borrowing 0          
0          Other Long Term Liabilities 0          
0          Long Term Liabilities 0          

1,523          NET ASSETS 365          
   

1,523          Usable Reserves 365          
0          Unusable Reserves 0          

1,523          TOTAL RESERVES 365          

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Purpose of the Report

1. To provide Members of the Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee with an 
update relating to performance and other operational matters.

Performance Update - Number of Cremations

2. The table below provides details of the number of cremations in April and May 
2018, with comparative data for the same period last year:

2017/18 2018/19 Change
April 88 114            + 26
May 118 129       + 11

TOTAL 206 243       + 37

3. There were 243 cremations undertaken during the period 1 April 2018 to 31 
May 2018, compared to 206 in the comparable period last year, an increase of 
37 year on year. 

4. The increase is consistent with Office for National Statistics data which shows 
there were nearly 20,000 more deaths in England and Wales in the first five 
months of 2018 compared to the same periods in the previous five years, 
prompting calls for a Government investigation. Some statisticians believe it 
can be attributed to the problems being experienced within the NHS and cuts in 
social care, along with a winter flu outbreak.

The profile of where families came from can be seen below:

Gateshead       77
Durham    145
Outside Area      21
Total    243

Memorials

4. The table below outlines the number and value of the memorials sold in the 
period April  to May 2018 compared to the same period the previous year. 

Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee

28 June 2018

Mountsett Crematorium Performance 
and Operational Report 

Report of Graham Harrison, Bereavement Services Manager

Page 55

Agenda Item 10



(Apr - May) 2017/18 (Apr - May) 2018/19
Number               £  Number                   £     

Large Plaques                3                  1,206               2                         804
Small Plaques                 4                  1,044               6                      1,566

Total                  7                  2,250   8                      2,370

5. In the first two months of this financial year there were 8 memorials sold, with a 
value of £2,370, compared to 7 / £2,250 in the same period last year – a year 
on year increase of 1 / £120. There is now a wider choice of plaques available 
at the crematorium, which is provng popular with service users.

Staffing

6. Members may recall that the vacant Business Admin Apprentice position was 
advertised on the National Apprentice website with a closing date of 18 April 
2018. Shortlisting was undertaken and six applicants were invited for interview, 
however 5 failed to attend the interviews. We are therefore arranging to re-
advertise this position again.

Institute of Cemetery and Crematorium Management ICCM Learning Convention 
and Exhibition 2018

7. As in previous years, the necessary arrangements will be made for 
representation at the Institute of Cemetery and Crematorium Management 
ICCM Learning Convention and Exhibition which is to be held at Oxford Belfry 
Hotel, Milton Common, Nr Thame, Oxfordshire from 1st to 3rd October 2018. It 
is proposed that the Bereavement Services Manager and the Chair attend this 
conference as representatives of Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee.

Recycling of Metals Scheme 

8. Members may recall that the Crematorium received a cheque relating to the 
recycling of metals scheme from the Institute of Cemetery and Crematorium 
Management to the sum of £5,000 for Cruse Bereavement Care. Arrangements 
were made for the Chair to present the cheque to the charity and a photograph 
of the presentation and letter of thanks is attached at Appendix 2. 

9. Additional funds from collections in 2017 have resulted in an extra round of 
nominations being made available and we have just received another cheque to 
the sum of £5,000 for Marie Curie. Arrangements are to be made for the 
cheque to be presented to the charity by the Committee Chair, Vice Chair and 
the Bereavement Services Manager.

Replacement of Cremators and Installation of Mercury Abatement Plant

10. Members will recall that an update was given at the last meeting regarding the 
installation of  the 2 new cremators with Mercury Abatement equipment to 
replace the existing cremators.

Page 56



11. The position remains unchanged and we are still working with A.T.I. to try and 
resolve ongoing issues.

 
Recommendations and Reasons

12. It is recommended that Members of the Mountsett Joint Committee:

 Note the current performance of the crematorium.

 Note the re-advertising of the Business Admin Apprentice post.

 Note the attendance of the Bereavement Services Manager and Chair to the 
Learning Convention and Exhibition.

 Note the distribution of recycling income received to the respective charity.

 Note the progress with regards to the cremator replacement.

Contact:    Graham Harrison, 03000 265606

Page 57



Finance 
As identified in the report.

Staffing

As identified in the report.

Risk

There are no implications

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty

There are no implications

Accommodation

There are no implications

Crime and Disorder

There are no implications

Human Rights

There are no implications

Consultation

Officers of Gateshead Council were provided with a copy of the report and given 
opportunity to comment/raise any detailed questions on the content of the report in 
advance of circulation to members of the Mountsett Crematorium.

Procurement

There are no implications

Disability Issues

There are no implications

Legal Implications

As outlined in the report

Appendix 1:  Implications

Page 58



Appendix 2:  Recycling of metals cheque presentation

On behalf of the Tees Valley & Durham Area Management Committee I thank you for the most 
generous donation of £5000 from the recycling scheme.  This donation could not have come at a 
better time as Cruse Tees Valley & Durham Area are now starting to feel the effects of the austerity 
measures that the local authorities are facing and our income is not meeting our needs.

This money will go a long way to help the bereaved people of County Durham this year and will enable 
our volunteers to travel to the wider areas of the county and hire rooms for the client's convenience.

The Committee would also like to thank Cllr Owen Temple for his support.

regards

Sarah McDermott
Area Coordinator (Finance, Administration & Training) Cruse Bereavement Care Tees Valley & Durham 
Area

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Purpose of the Report

1. This report sets out a suggested forward plan of meetings of the Joint 
Committee for the forthcoming year.

Forward Plan 2018/19

2. A proposed schedule of meetings for the remainder of 2018/19, showing a 
forward plan of reports that will be presented, is attached at Appendix 2.

Recommendations and Reasons

3. That members of the Joint Committee note and approve the proposed schedule 
of meetings as set out at Appendix 2. 

Background Papers
 None

Contact: Paul Darby, Head of Finance & Transactional Services   
Tel: 03000 261 930
Contact: Ed Thompson, Principal Accountant
Tel: 03000 263 481

Mountsett Crematorium 
Joint Committee

28 June 2018

Forward Plan 2018/19

                         

Report of  John Hewitt – Corporate Director: Resources & Treasurer 
to the Joint Committee

Page 61

Agenda Item 11



Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance
There are no financial implications associated with this report. Routine monitoring of 
budgetary control information and annual budget and fees and charges setting 
processes are factored into the Forward Plan.

Staffing
There are no staffing implications associated with this report.

Risk
There are no risk implications associated with this report. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
There are no equality and diversity implications associated with this report. Equality 
Impact Assessments, where appropriate, are undertaken as a matter of routine part 
of the development of any new policy or policy change.

Accommodation 
There are no Accommodation implications associated with this report.

Crime and Disorder
There are no Crime and Disorder implications associated with this report.

Human Rights
There are no implications associated with this report.

Consultation
None. However, Officers of Gateshead Council were provided with a copy of the 
report and given opportunity to comment / raise any detailed questions on the 
content of the report in advance of circulation to Members of the Mountsett 
Crematorium Joint Committee.

Procurement 
There are no implications associated with this report.

Disability Issues 
There are no implications associated with this report.

Legal Implications 
There are no implications associated with this report.

Page 62



Appendix 2:  Forward Plan : 2018 / 2019 Meetings

Meeting 
Date

Location Reports to Consider Report of

External Auditor Annual 
Review of the Return for 
the Year Ended 31 March 
2018

Report of Corporate Director 
of Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Quarterly Performance 
and Operational Report 

Report of Bereavement 
Services Manager 

Risk Register 2018/19 – 
Update

Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 
Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Service Asset 
Management Plan 

Report of Corporate Director 
of Regeneration and Local 
Services

Financial Monitoring 
Report 2018/19: Position 
at 31/08/18 with Projected 
Outturn to 31/03/19

Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 
Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Annual Review of the 
System of Internal Audit

Report of the Corporate 
Director Resources and 
Treasurer to the Joint 
Committee

27/09/2018 Mountsett 
Crematorium, 
Dipton, 
Stanley

9.30 a.m.

Budget Strategy Report Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 
Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee 

Quarterly Performance 
and Operational Report 

Report of Bereavement 
Services Manager 

Financial Monitoring 
Report 2018/19: Position 
at 31/12/18 with Projected 
Outturn to 31/03/19

Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 
Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Provision of  Support 
Services 2019/20

Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 
Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Fees and Charges 
2019/20

Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 
Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

31/01/2019 Mountsett 
Crematorium, 
Dipton, 
Stanley

9.30 a.m.

2019/20 Revenue Budget Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 

Page 63



Meeting 
Date

Location Reports to Consider Report of

Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Quarterly Performance 
and Operational Report 

Report of Bereavement 
Services Manager 

Financial Monitoring 
Report 2018/19: 
Provisional Outturn as at 
31/03/2019

Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 
Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Risk Register 2019/20 – 
Update

Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 
Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

29/04/2019 Mountsett 
Crematorium, 
Dipton, 
Stanley

9.30 a.m.

Annual Internal Audit 
Report 2018/19

Report of Corporate Director 
of Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Appointment of Chair Report of the Clerk to the 
Joint Committee

Appointment of Vice-Chair Report of the Clerk to the 
Joint Committee

Review of the Terms of 
Reference

Report of the Clerk to the 
Joint Committee

Annual Governance 
Statement 2018/19

Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 
Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Revenue Outturn and 
Joint Committees Return 
for the Year Ended 
31/03/2019

Joint Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services & 
Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Quarterly Performance 
and Operational Report

Report of Bereavement 
Services Manager

June 2019 
(AGM) 
Date TBC

Mountsett 
Crematorium, 
Dipton, 
Stanley

9.30 a.m.

Forward Plan 2019/20 Report of Corporate Director 
of Resources + Treasurer to 
the Joint Committee

Page 64


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Meeting held on 27 April 2018
	7 Mountsett Crematorium Joint Committee, Changes to Constitution / Terms of Reference
	Item 7 - Review of the Terms of Reference App 2

	8 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement
	9 Revenue Outturn & Joint Committees Annual Return for the Financial Year Ended 31 March 2018
	Item 9 - Revenue Outturn and Joint Committees Return Appendix 3

	10 Mountsett Crematorium Performance and Operational Report
	11 Forward Plan 2018/19

